
PLANNING BOARD 

TOWN OF PETERBOROUGH, New Hampshire 

 

Workshop Minutes of February 2, 2010 

 

The Peterborough Planning Board held a workshop on Monday, February 1, 2010 at 5:15 p.m. in 

the Selectmen’s Meeting Room at the Town House. The purpose of the Workshop is to discuss a 

potential amendment to the Wetlands Protection Ordinance and other potential zoning 

amendments as time allows. 

 

Members Present: Chairman Leandra MacDonald, Vice Chair David Enos, Richard Freitas, Rick 

Monahon, Ivy Vann, and Barbara Miller. 

 

Also Present:  Carol Ogilvie, Director Office of Community Development, Laura Norton, OCD 

Administrative Assistant. 

 

The Workshop was called to order at 5:20 p.m. Chair MacDonald noted the first order of 

business was to refer to a request for installation of small lighted bollards on the Monadnock 

Community Hospital (MCH) Campus. Chair MacDonald noted the request would provide 

lighting in a darkened area and was not a large enough request to have to come back to the 

Planning Board. She noted “we’ll refer this to the Minor Site Plan Review Committee.” It was 

noted the Minor Site Plan Review Committee consisted of the Police and Fire Chiefs, the Code 

Enforcement Officer, the Office of Community Development Director, the DWP Director, and a 

member each from the Conservation Commission and the Planning Board. 

 

Chair MacDonald also noted she would like to consider meeting with the appropriate individuals 

to talk about reducing the speed limit in the area of Parmelee Drive from 40 to 35 miles per hour 

and putting in a crosswalk to the other side of the street (where the sidewalk is). She noted the 

speed limit reduction must come first as “apparently 40 miles per hour is too fast to approach a 

crosswalk.” A brief discussion about safety concerns at that particular intersection followed with 

Mr. Monahon noting “I would support you on that; it is worth putting people’s attention there.” 

Chair MacDonald also noted the implementation of a CSS (Context Sensitive Solutions) 

approach for that area when the time came. 

 

Chair MacDonald then suggested the recent acquisition of conservation land made up of the 

Babine, Wheeler and Lowe lots be combined and call them one thing. She noted although it was 

under the purview of the Board of Selectmen “it would make sense to suggest it” as it would also 

incorporate the three deeds. Another member noted it might be renamed something like “the 

David Stevenson Memorial Land.”  Chair MacDonald replied “I think we would support 

something like that, and it would clean things up with one deed and one name.” 

 

Ms. Vann in at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Chair MacDonald began the discussion about the wetland ordinance by noting her concern about 

how the Planning Board would manage Conditional Use Permits and still provide the flexibility 

it may necessitate. Her concerns were a perfect segue into the discussion about the criteria for 



Planning Board Minutes                               February 1, 2010                                     Page 2 of 3 

flexibility and the use of Performance Standards that followed. The members also discussed the 

best use of the land based on the site specific values on it. One member also noted the 

unintentional consequences of the impacts to wetlands “from all the usual activities that come 

with a house.” 

 

A brief discussion about agricultural and silviculture practices in the wetland buffer, including 

Best Management Practices, followed. This discussion also reviewed the definition of wetlands 

and meeting the standards of hydric conditions in the soil. 

 

Ms. Miller in at 5:43 p.m. 

 

Mr. Freitas led a brief discussion about the proposed 100-foot setback that must be maintained 

from all wetlands noting that the half acre exclusion that currently exists had disappeared from 

the new recommendation. He noted “this is way overboard.” The discussion that followed 

included a review of much of the work the Wetland Workgroup had done as well as many 

opinions of what is best for the town of Peterborough. Mr. Freitas noted he felt the amendment 

was “going to affect a lot of people and reduce the value of the land.” Mr. Enos reiterated the 

criteria for Performance Standards for relief and noted “it is just like a Variance or a Special 

Exception to the ZBA, there is no difference as long as you meet the standards.” A brief 

discussion about the role of the ZBA followed with Mr. Freitas concluding “I am in favor of the 

three tier system from the Moosewood report.” Mr. Enos reiterated his feeling that the “one size 

fits all” approach does not work and noted functional values such as flooding control, wildlife 

habitat and the surface recharging for our town wells “are the things you can pick and choose as 

functions best suited for your town.” Mr. Freitas replied “what still remains is that people want to 

be able to use their land.” 

 

Mr. Enos responded by paraphrasing the summation he had made to the Wetland Workgroup 

earlier that day, advocating both the Master Plan and the Conservation Commission maintain that 

the best way to ensure water quality and wetland function is to increase the buffer size and that 

the belief that it is one’s right to do whatever one wants with their land has in fact led to 

(although unintentional) the indiscriminate degradation of water everywhere. He mentioned the 

prime wetland approach and noted “32 towns use this method” adding “it has a 100 foot setback 

with no relief process, it is not for us.” Mr. Enos again mentioned the need for flexibility and 

using proper planning and proper construction to reduce site impact. 

 

 Chair MacDonald summarized the discussion by noting “right now we have an ordinance that 

has a 50-foot setback from the wetlands and the amendment is to change that to a 50- foot buffer 

and add a 50-foot setback.” Another member noted “so we are proposing adding 50 feet that  

would add an additional distance so no impact would be made to the buffer (for example during 

construction.)” Ms. Vann reiterated the advantage of addressing planning issues through the 

process noting “the ZBA does not do this.” 

 

The members again discussed the unintentional degradation of natural resources from the daily 

activities of thousands of households and other entities in town. It was noted that these activities 

collectively affect the wetlands, water bodies and buffers. The members also discussed how to 

have a reasonable expectation that the people can use their land and not destroy the natural 



Planning Board Minutes                               February 1, 2010                                     Page 3 of 3 

environment in the process. A brief discussion about a Summer Street location and construction 

in a wetland area followed. 

 

Chair MacDonald reviewed several low impact development techniques and suggested the Board 

make a list of them to use as guidelines. She then added “let’s set another threshold” and asked 

the members “if a half acre is too big to ignore, what size is small enough to start another 

baseline?’ She explained she was asking if a smaller lot met the criteria “wouldn’t it by right get 

a smaller setback?” “That is exactly where I am” interjected Mr. Freitas, “exactly.” Ms. Ogilvie 

noted the Wetland Workgroup had discussed that thought as well and “right now a lot size of 

10,000 square feet (a little less than a quarter acre) is on the table.” She added “they thought that 

might be used as a threshold.” 

 

The members concluded by reviewing the information they had received. One member noted 

“we should be thinking about other things to put into the Standards” with another member 

interjecting “we should be thinking about the things we are hoping to accomplish by this.” 

 

Chair MacDonald acknowledged Fran Chapman who had come with a prepared statement to 

read to the Board. That statement was a response to the proposed amendment of §245:15 and is 

attached to these Minutes. 

 

The workshop adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

Laura Norton,  

Administrative Assistant 


